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Since 1909 the Montgomery Ward and Company Complex, located
on Chicago's near north side and sltuated along the east bank of
the North Branch of the Chicago River, has served as National
headquarters for the country's oldest mail order firm. The two
earllest structures, the old Administration Building and the Mail
Order House, remain and still exhibit much of theirp original
architectural vitality. Both are constructed of reinforced con-
crete and were designed by Hugh Garden, a second generation
Chicago School architeet and member of the distinguished firm of
Schmidt, Garden and Martin. The Mail Order House, renowned for
its use of the wide horizontal or "Chicago" window, has been
described by noted architectural historian Carl Condit as "one
of the most powerful works of utilitarian architecture that our
building art has produced."l0 Although an earlier Ward head-
quarters and catalog house, located at %he corner of Michigan
and Madison Avenues and in use from 1888 to 1909, is extant, 1t
has been so extensively altered, particularly on the upper and
lower levels of its exterior facade, that it shows little re-

semblance to its original purpose.

When Montgomery Ward founded the firm in 1872, he rented a
single 12-by 1lbi-foot rocm in a bullding at 825 Clark Street. One
year later this space was too small, and the company moved to 159
West Hubbard Street. By 1874 business was booming to such an
extent that another move was warranted, this time to much larger
gquarters at 246-254 Kenzie Street. Two years later, Ward moved .
his operations to 228-230 South Wabash, where they remained for the
next 12 years. In 1888 Montgomery Ward and Company purchased a
building on the northwest corner of Michigan and Madison Avenues
and over the years Increased its size to meet the expanding
company's needs. By 1966, however, the Michigan Avenue facility
was too small, and high real estate costs precluded further ex-
pansion in that area. The company purchased tracts of land north
and south of the Chicago Avenue bridge along the east bank of the
North Branch of the Chicago River and hired the distinguished
architectural firm of Schmidt, Garden, and Martin to design a
new facility. Under Hugh Garden's direction construction was
started on the Administration Building and Mail Order House that
same year. Although the Administration Building was completed
in 1907, the gigantic Mail Order House was not finished until
late in 1908, and Montgomery Ware and Company did not transfer
its entire operation to the new complex until early in 1909.

(continued)

loQuoted in Commission on Chicago Historical and Architectural
Landmarks, Montgomery Ward Complex, 3.
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In later years, Montgomery Ward and Company added to the complex
several warehouses, a Merchandise Research and Development Center,
parking ramps, and in 1974 a 26-story office building. Since the
1960's the company has spent $50 million in expanding ahd remodeling
the complex both to serve thelr own expandling needs and as part

of a conscious effort to revitalize the declining near north side.

Administration Building. Until 1974 this elght-story, rectangular
shaped structure of white-painted reinforced concrete served as
Montgomery Ward and Company's national headquarters. The eastward-
facing bullding measures 14 bays wide and has a reinforced

concrete frame which rests on 40-to-50-foot wooden pllings. From
the one-story base, adorned with sword and torch-like motifs,
vertical piers rise uninterrupted until they culminate in a par-
apet decorated like the base. Each bay contalins three double-

hung windows which are divided by continuous narrow mullions. The
spandrels appear recessed, but individual window sills are distinct,
creating a crisp contrast to the dominant verticality. The piers
situated near the center and corners of the structure are wider,
have individual double windows, and culminate in arch-like forms
above the eighth floor windows. The tower, which rises four
stories above the edifice at its northeast corner, was added
apparently in 1929-30., Its pyramidal roof 1s crowned with a 22-1/2-
focot bronze statue designed by J. Massey Rhine and entitled
"Progress Lighting the World." Originally this figure topped the
old Montgomery Ward Buildlng located on Michigan Avenue, and its
placement on the new tower was obviocusly an effort to link the old
and new. The tower has no windows except near the top, where

small windows pilerce its face, and 1its enly adornment consists

of motifs like those on the base and parapet.

In 1974 the headquarters operation was shifted to a new
26~-story skysceraper located approximately 60 feet east of the
old bullding. Presently, the old headquarters, well-maintained
and freshly painted, serves as a center for Montgomery Ward and
Company's Buying Cperations. The only major exterior change has
been the sheathing of portions of the base on the north end and
east side with red marble.

Mall Order House. Located approximately 40 feet north of the

north end of the Administration Building, this eight-story structure
of white-painted reinforced concrete measures 270 by 800 feet and

is capped with a flat roof. Roughly trapezoldal in shape, the

(econtinued)
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bullding bends to conform to the shoreline of the North Branch
of the Chicago River and covers several acres. When opened in
1908, the Catalog House consisted only of the three southern-
most sectlions and measured 270 by 500 feet. Nearly 19 million
cublic feet of concrete was used in its construction, and to
distribute thls material properly, it was necessary to use &
huge steel derricks. The reinforced concrete frame rests on
wooden plles with concrete caps. The piers are constructed of
spliral hooping set within the concrete, and all columns, floors,
and walls are constructed of reinforced concrete. .

The treatment of the facade is characteristic of the
Chicago School. (Garden, says the Commission on Chicago Histor-
ical and Architectural Landmarks, "as a second generation follower
of the school, employed ornament which 1s subordinated to and
dlctated by the structural and functional nature of the building-”l1
Simple carved bands cap the plers between the windows at each
level, and the projecting courses are omitted only between the
second and third floors. Here rosettes replace the brick on
the spandrels, and the vertical pilers become dominant. At the
third level, sword-like motifs, similar to those on the Admin-
istration Bullding, adorn the pilers between the windows.

The most noticable exterior aspect of the structure is its
rows of wide horizontal or "Chicago" windows. These were necess-
itated because the building had long work benches and conveyor
belts which required much light. Between the rows of windows
are continuous spandrels with narrow projecting bands at their
tops and bottoms. Faced with red brick, the spandrels were

‘deslgned to create a contrasting band with the concrete and

reinforce the feeling of length, but this effect has been partially
lost because the entire building has been pailnted white.

Inside, the structure contains miles of chutes and conveyors,
storage lofts, and all the facilities necessary to fill the
thousands of orders recelved dally. The first floor contains a
railroai shed which can accomodate 24 freight cars. The most
noticeable physical feature of the interior are the huge octagoenal-
shaped concrete pillars and supports which run the entire length
of the building.

(continued)

1lcommission on Chicago Historical and Architectural
Landmarks, Montgomery Ward Complex, 5.
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Since opening the Mail Order House in 1908, Montgomery Ward
and Company has increased its size on at least three occasions
between 1909 and 19€0 to give the structure 1ts present dimensions.
These additiens, all on the north end of the original bullding,
follow Garden's general design and do not detract from the beauty
of the original structure. Except for the covering of white paint,
exterior alteratilons appear minimal. A portion of the south end
has been converted into a retail store but interior change has
been confined primarily to painting the concrete columns, cellings,
and walls and covering the floors with linoleum.

Although Montgomery Ward and Company furnished some printed
materlal relating to the Administration Bullding and Mail Order
House, it did not allow the AASLH representative access to the
nonpublic interior areas of these buildings.

Boundary Justification. The boundary of the designated area
includes the old Administration Building and the Mail Order

House, a total cof about 7 acres. Not included are several other
company structures that are of more recent origin and conseguently
do not contribute to the national significance of the complex.

Boundary Description. As indicated in red on the accompanying
maps [(1) U.S.G.S. 7.5' Series, Il1l., Chicago Loop Quad., 1963,
photorevised 1972; and (2) AASLH Sketch Map, 19771, a line be-
ginning at the western edge of the right-of-way of Kingsbury Street
and extending southwestward approximately 300 feet along the ex-
terior plane of the north end of the Catalog House to an unmarked
point on the east bank of the North Branch Canal near its Junction
with the North Branch of the Chlcago River; thence, southward
approximately 1,100 feet along the east bank of the North Branch
Canal and then along the east bank of the North Branch of the
Chicago River across West Chicago Aveniue to the southwest corner
of the Administration Building; thence, eastward approximately

250 feet along the exterior plane of the south facade of saild
bullding to the western edge of the right-of-way of Larrabee Street;
thence, northward approximately 825 feet along the western edge of
the right-of-way of Larrabee Street, across West Chicago Avenue,

to the western edge of the right-of-way of Kingsbury Street at its
intersection with Larrabee Street; thence, northwestward approx-
imately 575 feet along the western edge of the right-of-way of
Kingsbury Street to the point of beginning.
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’ Adcording to distingulished histori

an Daniel J. Boorstini
1

Montgomery Ward "proved the success of the mail order idea.
In additicn to demeonstrating the feasibility of a new method of

retalling,
"profoundly influenced . . .

says company historian Frank 8. Latham, Ward also

living conditions."? TFor the first

time, many rural Americans had access to a greater variety of

material goods and at lcower prices to boot.

In fact,

according

to eminent historian Allan Nevins, within a few years after
Montgomery Ward and Company was established in 1872, it "was
boasting--and justly--that it had saved the consumer millions
merely by forecing lccal dealers toc sell thelr wares at fair

prices."

secret at all, but simply to te hecnest
‘always let the customer be the Jjudge."

The -secret of Ward's success, says Beoorstin, "was not a

fmive good value and
This formula not only

made Ward a wealthy man, but it set a standard for the mail order
Industry which other firms like Sears, Roebuck and Company found
1t necessary to emulate 1n order to compete, and 1n the final
analysis, it established the consumer trust which made a large
scale mail order industry pessible.

Sears,

After 1900 Montgomery Vard and Comrnany was surpassed by

Roebuck and Company as the Nation's largest mail order

firm largely due to the great promotional and advertising abkility

of 1%ts principal founder Richard Warren Sears.

lpaniel J. Boorstin,

In the years

{continued)

The Americans: The Demeccratic Experience

(New York, 1973), 124.

2Fpank 8. Latham, 1872-1972 A Century of Serving Consumers:
The Story of Monteomery Ward (Chicago, 1972), S51.

3A1lan Nevins, The Emergence of Modern America, 1865-1878
(Chicago, 1971), 172.

4pante1l 7. Boorstin, "A.

Chicago History, II (Spring-Summer, 1973), 148.

lontgomery Ward's Mail-Order Business,
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since, Wards has remained second to Sears In catalopue sales and

. has generally followed that company's lead in adopting new selling

techniques and in branching out into the retail store field.
Today Montgomery Ward serves over 30 millicn customers in 1ts
2,100 ocutlets and sells almost %5 billion in merchandise yearly.

Since 1909 the Montgomery Ward and Company Complex, located
on Chicago's near north side and situated along the east bank of
the North Branch of the Chicago River, has served as Natlional
headquarters for the country's oldest mail order firm. The two
earliest structures, the old Administration Bullding and the Mail
Order House, remain and still exhibit much of thelr original
architectural vitality. Both are constructed of reinforced con-
crete and were desipned by Hugh Garden, a seccnd generatlion Chicago
School architect and memter of the distinguished firm of Schmidt,
Garden and Martin. The lMail Order House, renowned for its use of
the wide horizontal or "Chicago" window, has been described by
noted architectural historian Carl Condit as "one of the most
powerful works_of utilitarian architecture that our building art
has produced." Although an earlier Ward headaguarters and catalog
house, located at the corner of Ilichigan and FMadison Avenues and
in use from 1388 to 190¢, is extant, 1t has been so extensively
altered, particularly on the upprer and lower levels of 1ts exteriocr
facade, that it shows little resemblance to its origpinal purpose.

History

Aaron Montgomery Ward was born February 17, 1843, in Chatham,
N.J., to Sylvester A. and Julia G. Ward. A few years later, the
Wards moved to Niles, Mich., where Sylvester set up a cobbler
shop. Despite his family's modest clrcumstances, young Ward
attended public school long enough to obtain a fairly good basic
education. In 1857 he went to work as a cobbler's apprentlce but
disliked this trade and soon began to seek opportunities in other
fields. After brief stints as a laborer in a barrel factory and
a brick yard, Ward obtained employment 1n a shoe store and soon

decided he wanted a career in retailing.
(continued)

5Quoted in Commission on Chicago Historical and Architectural
Landmarks, Montgomery Ward Complex: Summary of Information on the
Warehouse and Office Building, September 8, 1975 (Chicago, 1975), 3.
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In 1862 Ward moved to St. Joseph, Mich., where he worked as
a clerk in a general store. Within 3 years he was store manager,
and his salary had risen from $5 to $100 per month. Extremely
ambltious, Ward gave up this position in 1866 and went to Chicago
to seek his fortune. For 2 years, he was a $12 a week clerk for
the wholesale dry goods firm headed by Marshall Field before
obtalning a2 position as travellng salesman for Walter M. Smith
and Company, a St. Louis dry goods wholesaler.

During his travels iIn the Nation's hinterlands, Ward, according
to bilographer Edward A. Duddy, "obtained an intimate knowledge of I
rural conditions wgich enabled him to make a distinetive contribution
to Amerlcan 1ife.™ In visiting general stores he noticed the high
markup on many items, the poor condition of much of the merchandise,
the limited selectlon of goods, and the sullen discontent of many
of the customers. Blaming this situation on what he considered
an antiquated distribution system, Ward conceived the idea of a
large store in a central location which would buy goods 1n large
quantitles direct from manufacturers for cash and then sell them
by mail to consumers for cash. Most of Ward's friends ridiculed
the 1dea of a mail order store, arguing that people would not
purchase merchandise sight unseen, but he refused to abandon
his idea.

In order to put his theory into practice, Ward returned to
Chicago, went to work for S. W. Pardridge Company, a State Street
dry goods firm, and gradually accumulated a variety of merchandise.
By 1871, he felt ready to launch his venture, but the Chicago Fire
of that year completely destroyed his small stock of goods. Un-
daunted by this setback, Ward agaln began to accumulate merchandise.

Finally, in August, 1872 Ward, with $1,600 in capital and
two fellow employees from the Pardridge Company as partners,
launched Montgomery Ward and Company from a small rented room on
North Clark Street. His first catalogue consisted of one page and
listed 163 items ranging from cotton cloth to ostrich plumes. To
obtain orders, he advertised chiefly in farm periodicals, and in
the firm's early months of operation, public response was far
from overwhelming. His two partners soon abandoned the venture,
and Ward managed to keep it afloat only because he had kept his
old Job with the Pardridge Company. In 1873 the Company recelved

{continued)

BEdward A. Duddy, "Aaron Montgomery Ward," Dictionary of
American Biography, Vol. X, Part 1 (New York, 1936), 8415,

N -




form Ng. 10-300a

(Aev. 10-74)
UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR FOR NPS USE ONLY
NATIONAL PARK SERVICE
RECEIVED
NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES o
DATE ENTERED

INVENTORY -- NOMINATION FORM

CONTINUATION SHEETMontgomery Ward TEMNUMBER 8 PAGE thpee

a needed infusion of capital when George R. Therne, Ward's brother-
in-law, became a partner.

In 1874 Montgomery Ward and Company established itself.
Sales that year reached $100,000, the first bound catalogue~--a
24-page tome--appeared, and Ward felt confident enough to leave
Pardridge to devote full time to his own company's affairs. Two
years later, sales passed the $300,000 mark and by 1887 reached
$1 million., This "expansion was due," says Latham," to a large
trade buillt up through orders from Granges and farmer's clubs."?
For many years, the firm identified itself as "the Original
Grange Supply House," something of a misncmer since it was only
one of several firms with which that organization dealt. Ward,
however, won praise for his firm in Grange publications by agreeing
to act as a purchasing agent for the organization's co-op stores
and for attempting to market farmer's grain for a 1¢ a bushel
commission, all of which contributed to increased catalogue sales,
Ward was also responsible for a drop in local retail prices. In
fact, shortly after the company was founded, says Nevins, it 'was
boasting--and justly--that it had saved the consumer millions
merely by forcing local dealers to sell their wares at fair prices."8

Montgomery Ward and Company continued to grow even after

the Granger movement began to decline, and was by far the largest

. maill order firm in the country. The secret of Ward's success,
says Boorstin, "was not a secret at all, but simply to be honest,
give good value and always let the customer be the judge."9 This
formula not only made Ward a wealthy man, but 1t set a standard
for the maill order industry which other companles found 1t necessary
to emulate in order to compete and, in the final analysis, estab-
lished the consumer trust which made a large scale mail order
industry possible.

After 1900 Montgomery Ward and Company was surpassed by
Sears, Roebuck and Company as the Nation's largest mail order firm
largely due to the great promotional and advertising ability of
its principal founder Richard Warren Sears. By this time, however,

(continued)

7Latham, A Century of Serving Consumers, 12.
8Nevins, The Emergence of Modern America, 172.

9Boorstin, "A.Montgomery Ward's Mail-Order Business,"
Chicago History, II, 143.
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Ward had almost completely withdrawn from active management. In
1893 he sold a controlling interest to his partner George R,
Thorne, whose five sons were actually running the company by the
turn of the century. After 1903, Ward stopped attending board
meetings but retalned the title of president until his death in
1913. His consuming passion in his final years was a crusade

to save Chlcago's lake front from commerclal encroachment. As

a result of his lengthy legal battles, development was stymied,
and what is now Grant Park was preserved for future generations.

In the years following Ward's death, the company he founded
has remained second to Sears in catalogue sales and has generally
followed that company in adopting new selling technigues and in
branching out into the retall store fleld. In 1920 Ward's nephews,
the five Thorne brothers, lost control of the company, thus severing
the company's last link to its founder. Today, a subsidiary of
the Mobil 0il Corporation, Montgomery Ward and Company serves over
30 million customers in 1ts 2,100 outlets and sells almost $5
billion 1n merchandise yearly. Despite the changes that the firm
has undergone, however, 1ts impact on the mail-order business
remains a major chapter in the history of retailing in America.
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Montgomery Ward Complex

617-618 West Chicago Avenue
Chicago, Illinois

Photo No, 1 )

By: Ralph J. Christran, AASLH
Negative at: Historic Sites Survey
Date: February, 1977

View: From the west, showing west
facade of Catalog House, north end and

west facade of 0ld Administration Buillg.
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Montgomery Ward Complex
617-618 West Chicago Avenue
Chicago, Illinois

Photo No, 2

By: Ralph J. Christian, AASLH
Negative at: Historic Sites Survey
Date: February, 1977

View: West facade of Catalog House
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Montgomery Ward Complex
617-618 West Chicago Avenue
Chicage, Illinois

Photo No. &4 ,

By: Ralph J. Christian, AASLH
Negative at: Historic Sites Survey
Date: February, 1977

View: From the west, showing west;
facade and north end of old Administ-
ration Building, and portion of north
end of Research and Development Center
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Montgomery Ward Complex
617-618 West Chicago Avenue
Chlcago, Illinois

Photo No. 3

-By: Ralph J. Christian, AASLH
Negative at: Historic Sites Survey
Date: February, 1977

View: From the east, showing east - *
facade of Catalog House, east facade
and portion of north end of old
Administration Bullding, and portion of

north end of Research and Development -
Center
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